
             NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

Scrutiny Review – Foundation Trust Applications 
(North Middlesex University Hospital & Barnet, 

Enfield & Haringey Mental Health Trust)  

 
WEDNESDAY, 12TH DECEMBER, 2007 at 14:00 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, 
WOOD GREEN, N22 8LE. 
 
MEMBERS: Councillors Bull (Chair), Mallett, Newton and Winskill 

 
 
AGENDA 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE    
 
2. URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 The Chair will consider the admission of any late items or urgent business.  Late items will 

be considered under the agenda items where they appear.  New items will be dealt with 
after item 7 below. 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority 

at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the existence and 
nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the 
interest becomes apparent.  
 
A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that 
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the 
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the 
member's judgment of the public interest and if this interest affects their financial 
position or the financial position of a person or body as described in paragraph 8 of 
the Code of Conduct and/or if it relates to the determining of any approval, consent, 
licence, permission or registration in relation to them or any person or body described 
in paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct. 
 
 
 



 

2 

4. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING  (PAGES 1 - 46)  
 
 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on Monday 19th November. 

 
5. TO RECEIVE EVIDENCE FROM HARINGEY TPCT  (PAGES 47 - 48)  
 
 Haringey TPCT to provide a response to foundation trust applications from: 

 

• North Middlesex University Hospital (awaiting response) 
 

• Barnet, Enfield & Haringey Mental Health Trust (letter attached) 
 

6. REVIEW CONCLUSIONS & RECOMMENDATIONS    
 
 Barnet Enfield & Haringey Mental Health Trust  - A briefing paper to follow. 

 
North Middlesex University Hospital  - A briefing paper to follow. 
 

7. SCRUTINY REVIEW EVALUATION    
 
 To receive feedback from the Panel on the effectiveness of the scrutiny review 

process. 
 

8. MEETING CLOSE 
 
  
 
Yuniea Semambo  
Head of Local Democracy and Member Services  
5th Floor 
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 

Martin Bradford  
Research Officer 
Overview & Scrutiny 
7th Floor, River Park House 
225 High Road 
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
020 8489 6950 
Martin.bradford@haringey.gov.uk 
 



MINUTES OF THE SCRUTINY REVIEW - FOUNDATION TRUST APPLICATIONS (NORTH 

MIDDLESEX UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL & BEH MENTAL HEALTH TRUST) 

MONDAY, 19 NOVEMBER 2007 

Councillors Bull (Chair), Mallett, Newton and Winskill 

LC1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
None. 

LC2. URGENT BUSINESS  
None. 

LC3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
None. 

LC4. TERMS OF REFERENCE  

Agreed: The Review  Panel w ill also consider  t he im plicat ions o f  t he new  

f inancial f reedom s conferred w it h  Foundat ion Trust  st at us w it h in  t he 

t erm s of  reference  

Agreed: Wit h  t he above add it ion, t he t erm s of  reference w ere approved by 

t he Panel. 

LC5. TO HEAR EVIDENCE FROM THE NORTH MIDDLESEX UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL  

Claire Panniker  (Chief  Execut ive) and Joe Harr ison (Deput y Chief  Execut ive) 

gave a present at ion (at t ached) out lin ing t he NMUH’s proposals for  

foundat ion Trust  st at us and responded t o  quest ions raised by Mem bers.  A 

sum m ary o f  t he m ain  po in t s t o  ar ise f rom  t h is d iscussion is provided 

below . 

Consult at ion process

• It  w as not ed t hat  t he NMUH is also due t o  consu lt  w it h  Overview  & 

Scrut iny Com m it t ee at  Enf ield  Council on t he 27
t h
 Novem ber 2007.  A 

copy o f  responses provided by NMUH t o  quest ions posed by Enf ield  OSC 

w as circu lat ed t o  m em bers (at t ached). 

• In  response t o  quest ions f rom  t he Panel, t he NMUH ind icat ed t hat  it  

in t ended t o  d ist r ibut e 25,000 cop ies o f  t he consu lt at ion docum ent  

w it h in  t he Har ingey and Enf ield  com m unit ies.  The expect ed response 

rat e w as d if f icu lt  t o  pred ict .  Alt hough t he BEH Clin ical St rat egy 

consu lt at ion had a response rat e o f  2-3%, it  w as ant icipat ed t hat  t he FT 

st at us consu lt at ion response w ould  be low er as t h is d id not  d irect ly 

concern changes t o pat ient  services.  

• NMUH st at ed t hat  t he consu lt at ion requ irem ent s for  app licat ions for 

Foundat ion Trust  st at us concerned governance proposals for  t he Trust .  

Nat ional po licy ob ject ives also st at e t hat  all NHS Trust s are t o  becom e 

Foundat ion Trust s by end o f  2008.  Consult at ion quest ions w ere t hus 

focussed on t hose proposals for  w hich t he t rust  w as ab le t o  respond. 

Governance arrangem ent s

Agenda Item 4Page 1



MINUTES OF THE SCRUTINY REVIEW - FOUNDATION TRUST APPLICATIONS (NORTH 

MIDDLESEX UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL & BEH MENTAL HEALTH TRUST) 

MONDAY, 19 NOVEMBER 2007 

• The Panel w ere concerned as t o  how  t he view s and opin ions of  t he 

Mem bersh ip  w ould  ef fect ively be represent ed at  Board level o f  t he new  

Foundat ion Trust .  The Panel heard t hat  t he NMUH aim s t o recru it  5,000-

10,000 people t o  t he m em bersh ip  o f  t he Foundat ion Trust  f rom  w hich 

represent at ive Governors w ould  be elect ed.  These 18 pub lic Governors 

w ould form  a m ajor it y on t he Board o f  Governors, w hich it self  w ould  be 

ab le t o appoin t  a m ajor it y o f  t he Board o f  Direct ors (Chair  & Non Execs).  

The Board o f  Governors w ould  be expect ed t o  engage and consu lt  t he 

Mem bersh ip  and t he broader pub lic. 

• In  response t o  Panel quest ion ing, t he NMUH ind icat ed t hat  Board 

m eet ings w ould  cont inue t o  be held  in  pub lic once Foundat ion Trust  

st at us has been at t ained.  

• The Panel heard t hat  t he Board o f  Direct ors w ould have overall 

responsib ilit y for  day t o  day m anagem ent , t hough t he Board o f  

Governors w ould have inf luence in t he overall st rat eg ic d irect ion o f  t he 

Foundat ion Trust .  It  is prescr ibed in  t he leg islat ion t hat  t he Chairm an of  

t he Foundat ion Trust  w ill chair  bot h  t he Board o f  Direct ors and Board o f  

Governors m eet ings. 

Agreed: The NMUH w as request ed t o  provide an organ isat ional char t  o f  t he 

new  governance arrangem ent s for  t he Foundat ion Trust  (at t ached). 

Par t nersh ips

• The Panel w ere concerned t hat  Foundat ion St at us m ight  im pact  on 

par t nersh ip  w ork in  t he local healt h  econom y as t h is w ould  in  ef fect  

t ake t he NMUH out  o f  NHS cont ro l.  The NMUH ind icat ed t hat  it  w ould 

st ill fo rge close relat ionsh ips w it h  o t her  healt h  and social care 

providers, and not ed t hat  par t ner  agencies w ould  all be ab le t o 

nom inat e Governors t o  t he Board (of  Governors).  

Pat ient  Exper ience

• The Panel w ere keen t o  underst and w hat  im pact  Foundat ion Trust  

st at us w ould  have on t he exper iences o f  pat ient s using t he NMUH.   The 

t rust  repor t ed t hat  pat ient s w ould  exper ience very lit t le d if ference in 

t he shor t  t erm , t hough it  w as hoped t hat  im proved account ab ilit y 

arrangem ent s w ould  br ing about  subst ant ive service im provem ent s in 

t he m edium  t erm . 

Finance

• NMUH has t urned around a £9m  def icit  in  t o  a pro ject ed surp lus o f  £3m  

t hrough ef f iciency savings m ade in  2006./ 7.  How ever, am ore 

challeng ing f inancial clim at e lay ahead, as t ar if fs for  Paym ent  by Result s 

w ould  be reduced over  t he com ing years.    

• The m ain  sources o f  incom e w ill cont inue t o  com e f rom  NHS 

organisat ions (i.e. local PCTs) once Foundat ion Trust  st at us has been 

at t ained.  Incom e from  t he pr ivat e pat ient s is capped at  2002/ 3 levels, 

w h ich for  t he NMUH is approxim at ely £200,000-£300,000. The regu lat or , 

Monit or , w ill det erm ine t he am ount  w hich t he NMUH m ay borrow  as a 

Page 2



MINUTES OF THE SCRUTINY REVIEW - FOUNDATION TRUST APPLICATIONS (NORTH 

MIDDLESEX UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL & BEH MENTAL HEALTH TRUST) 

MONDAY, 19 NOVEMBER 2007 

Foundat ion Trust .  Alt hough a num ber o f  sources (bot h  pr ivat e and 

pub lic) o f  borrow ing w ill be availab le t o  t he NMUH once Foundat ion 

Trust  st at us has been at t ained, no fu t ure lenders have not  specif ically 

ident if ied  as yet . 

• The NMUH ind icat ed t hat  it  w ould  be ab le t o  keep and reinvest  som e 

surp luses. The Foundat ion Trust  w ould  be allow ed t o  keep any 

operat ing surp lus t hat  w as der ived f rom  ef f iciencies m ade in  t he 

t reat m ent  and care o f  pat ient s (i.e. im proved arrangem ent s lead ing t o 

ear lier  d ischarge). Surp luses der ived f rom  unplanned var iat ions in 

cont ract s or  Service Level Agreem ent s (i.e. seeing few er pat ient s t o  

t hose cont ract ed) w ould  not  be ret ained. 

• There w as som e concern am ong t he Panel t hat  t he new  f inancial and 

cont ract ual f reedom s available t o  t he NMUH w ould  be used t o  creat e 

pay d if ferent ials w hich m ay be det r im ent al t o  st af f  w orking in  t he 

localit y.  The NMUH reassured t he Panel t hat  all st af f  w ould  st ill cont inue 

t o  be w orking for t he NHS.  It  w as acknow ledged t hat  it  m ight  be 

necessary t o  incent ivise par t icular  groups o f  healt hcare personnel 

w here t here w ere know n t o  be part icu lar  shor t ages or  and st rong 

com pet it ion bet w een t rust s (i.e. Consult ant  Radio log ist s). 
  
Fram ew ork for  Act ion

• There w as som e uncer t ain t y am ongst  t he Panel as t o  how  t he 

acquisit ion o f  Foundat ion Trust  st at us w ould  af fect  t he NMUH in 

relat ionsh ip  t o  t he p lanned NHS reg ional reorganisat ion (Fram ew ork for  

Act ion – Darzi Review ).   

Agreed: The NMUH w as request ed t o  provide a w r it t en response t o  

conf irm  w hat  ro le it  w ould t ake in  relat ion t o  Fram ew ork for Act ion (Darzi 

Review  of  London healt h  services) and it  w ould  cooperat e and respond 

w it h  resu lt ant  service recom m endat ion (at t ached). 

LC6. TO HEAR EVIDENCE FROM BARNET ENFIELD & HARINGEY MENTAL HEALTH 
TRUST  

Maria Kane (Act ing Chief  Execut ive), Andrew  Wright  (Head of  Business 

Developm ent ) and Kat ia Louka (Mem bersh ip  & Market ing Manager) gave a 

shor t  present at ion (at t ached) and responded t o  quest ions f rom  t he Panel.  

A sum m ary o f  t he po in t s w it h in t h is d iscussion is provided below : 

Consult at ion process

The Panel w ere keen t o  hear  how  t he MHT w ould  engage t he d iverse 

com m unit ies t hat  live across t he t hree boroughs.   

• The MHT repor t ed t hat  t he consu lt at ion docum ent  w ould  be d ist r ibut ed 

in  t w o form at s; t he fu ll consu lt at ion docum ent  and a sum m arised 

version.  In t o t al, 30,000 cop ies w ould  be d ist r ibut ed.  A new spr int  

version o f  t he consu lt at ion docum ent  has been produced and w ill be 

Page 3



MINUTES OF THE SCRUTINY REVIEW - FOUNDATION TRUST APPLICATIONS (NORTH 

MIDDLESEX UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL & BEH MENTAL HEALTH TRUST) 

MONDAY, 19 NOVEMBER 2007 

circu lat ed t oo all hom es across t he localit y.  Copies have also been 

d ist r ibut ed t o  all local lib rar ies and general pract ices. 

• The Panel suggest ed t hat  t here w as a danger o f  t he pub lic becom ing 

consu lt at ion w eary and inundat ed w it h  request s t o  becom e Mem bers 

o f  d if ferent  local Foundat ion Trust s.  The MHT ind icat ed t hat  t he pub lic 

cou ld indeed becom e m em bers o f  any num ber of  Foundat ion Trust s.  

The MHT w as w orking w it h  t he NMUH and t he Whit t ingt on t o  develop a 

jo in t  m em bersh ip  arrangem ent  w it h  t hese t rust s. 

Agreed: That  Har ingey local Area Assem blies be included w it h in  BEH MHT 

consu lt at ion program m e for  Foundat ion Trust  st at us.  

Governance arrangem ent s

The Panel t hanked t he MHT for  t he clar it y o f  new  governance proposals 

w it h in  t he consu lt at ion docum ent . The Panel w ere concerned as t o  how  

t he com m unit y w ould  be represent ed at  t he execut ive level w it h in  t he 

Foundat ion Trust . 

• The MHT proposals for  t he Mem bers Council include a larger  num ber o f  

Governors t han for  o t her  Foundat ion Trust s, t h is being t o  ref lect  t he 

num ber o f  boroughs w hich t he t rust  covers. 

• The MHT ind icat ed t hat  it  has a long t rad it ion o f  user  and carer  

invo lvem ent  in  all aspect s o f  service p lanning and delivery.  It  w as 

expect ed t hat  t h is t rad it ion w ould  be expanded under new  governance 

arrangem ent s for  t he t rust .  The MHT also not ed t hat  it  had a good 

relat ionsh ip  w it h  it s Pat ient  & Public Invo lvem ent  Forum .   

• The Panel w ere concerned at  t he MHT proposals t o  change t he nam e of  

t he t rust  t o  Nort h  London NHS Foundat ion Trust .  The MHT repor t ed 

t hat  it  p roposed t o  om it  reference t o  m ent al healt h in it s nam e t o 

m in im ise service associat ed st igm a.  The MHT also felt  t hat  ‘Nor t h  

London’ w as m ore appropr iat e t o  signify t he area in  w hich it s client s 

w ere resident .  The MHT ind icat ed t hat  t h is par t icu lar  issue w as one of  

t he key consult at ion quest ions and agreed t o  provide specif ic feedback 

f rom  t he consult at ion t o  Overview  & Scrut iny. 

• Mem bers quest ioned t he MHT on w hy t here w as just  one pub lic 

const it uency w it h in proposals for  t he Mem bersh ip .  The MHT ind icat ed 

t hat  a d ist inct  pat ient  const it uency for a m ent al healt h  t rust  m ay det er 

people f rom  applying, t hus preferred t he general opt ion o f  one pub lic 

const it uency w hich w ould  not  be st igm at ising.  The Panel suggest ed 

t hat  it  m ight  be m ore appropr iat e t o ret ain  bot h  public and pat ient  

const it uencies t o  g ive people a cho ice.  The Panel ind icat ed t hat  it  

w ould like t o  receive feedback on t h is specif ic aspect  o f  t he 

consu lt at ion. 

• Represent at ives f rom  t he PPI Forum  suggest ed t hat  t here should  be 

great er  represent at ion o f  vo lunt ary sect or  groups on t he Mem bers 

Council t hat  w as current ly p lanned for  (3 Governors).   

Page 4



MINUTES OF THE SCRUTINY REVIEW - FOUNDATION TRUST APPLICATIONS (NORTH 

MIDDLESEX UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL & BEH MENTAL HEALTH TRUST) 

MONDAY, 19 NOVEMBER 2007 

Agreed: The MHT t o  provide specif ic feedback t o  Overview  & Scrut iny in 

relat ion t o  (1) proposals for  nam e change for  t he t rust  (2) proposals t o  

have one pub lic const it uency (and no pat ient  const it uency) w it h in  t he 

Mem bersh ip . 

Par t nersh ips & Finance

• The Panel w ere keen t o  hear  f rom  t he MHT how  it  is prepar ing for  t he 

new  cont ract ual relat ionsh ip  t hat  w ill exist  bet w een com m issioners 

(PCTs) and t hem selves, t hese now  being legally b inding and o f  t hree 

year  durat ion.   

• The MHT ind icat ed t hat  it  w as broad ly in  favour  o f  t hree year  cont ract s 

as t h is allow ed adequat e t im e for  t he service developm ent  cycle t o 

occur  (st ar t  up, evaluat e and respond).  In  t he fu t ure, t he MHT w ould 

have t o carefu lly consider  w het her  shor t -t erm  service com m issions 

w ould  be viab le. 

• The MHT w ere o f  t he op in ion t hat  t he cont ract ual balance bet w een 

it self  and t he com m ission ing bod ies w as current ly not  balanced, w here 

t here w ere great er  r isks on t he side o f  t he MHT.  It  w as hoped t hat  t he 

new  cont ract ual relat ionsh ip  t hat  w ould  exist  once t he MHT becam e a 

FT, w ould  balance out  t hese r isks.   

St  Ann’s Hospit al (SAH) Sit e

The Panel had a num ber o f  quest ions about  t he fu t ure o f  t he SAH sit e and 

how  Foundat ion Trust  st at us w ould in f luence t hese plans.

• The MHT repor t ed t hat  developm ent  o f  t he SAH sit e rem ained an 

im port ant  pr ior it y as t h is w as cent ral t o  t heir  service developm ent  

pr ior it ies.  The redevelopm ent  o f  t he sit e w as also necessary t o  t ackle 

t he large backlog o f  m ain t enance w ork t hat  w as requ ired on sit e. 

• The MHT repor t ed t hat  t he out line for  t he developm ent  of  t he SAH sit e 

has been w it h  t he St rat eg ic Healt h  Aut hor it y for  som e t im e and had 

been approved.  The next  st age o f  t he developm ent  process has been 

t o  develop a f inal business case for  t he sit e developm ent .  The MHT 

repor t ed t hat  a jo in t  appoin t m ent  o f  Pro ject  Direct or  had been 

approved (w it h  t he TPCPT) t o  oversee sit e developm ent .   

• The f inal business case had yet  t o  be agreed how ever and t here w ere a 

num ber o f  d iscussions t aking p lace bet w een in t erest ed st akeholders.  

The MHT are in  d iscussions w it h  t he TPCT in  respect  o f  t he developm ent  

o f  a possib le po lyclin ic on sit e (in  accordance w it h  t heir  Pr im ary Care 

St rat egy).  The MHT also not ed t hat  t he review  of  NHS Est at es is 

current ly being undert aken by NHS London in  w hich t he SAH sit e is 

included.  In  ligh t  o f  t hese d iscussions, t he MHT repor t ed t hat  it  w as not  

in  a posit ion t o  conf irm  as yet , fu t ure p lans for  t he sit e. 

Pat ient  issues

• A m em ber o f  t he PPI Forum  w as in  at t endance.  It  w as recorded t hat  

t he MHT w as in  t he process o f  responding t o  a num ber o f  quest ions 

f rom  t he forum . 

Page 5



MINUTES OF THE SCRUTINY REVIEW - FOUNDATION TRUST APPLICATIONS (NORTH 

MIDDLESEX UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL & BEH MENTAL HEALTH TRUST) 

MONDAY, 19 NOVEMBER 2007 

Agreed: The MHT t o  provide t he Panel w it h  a copy o f  it s responses t o  t he 

PPI Forum  quest ions (at t ached). 

Agreed: That  BEH MHT is invit ed t o  at t end Overview  and Scrut iny 

Com m it t ee t o  feedback on t he consu lt at ion process (booked 25/ 2/ 2008). 

LC7. TO RECEIVE WRITTEN EVIDENCE TO THE PANEL  

No subm issions w ere received f rom  Haringey TPCT.   It  w as not ed t hat  

t hese responses w ould  be d ist r ibut ed t o  Panel Mem bers once received. 

LC8. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS  

None. 

LC9. DATE OF NEXT MEETING  

The dat e of  t he next  m eet ing w as conf irm ed as 2pm  on Wednesday 12t h  

Decem ber 2007 (Har ingey Civic  - Com m it t ee Room  6).

Cllr Gideon Bull 

Chair 

Page 6



Becoming a Foundation Trust

Our community, our health, our hospital

Clare Panniker, CEO
Haringey OSC

Some Facts: a Foundation Trust is…

• A provider of health care on the basis of 
need, not on the ability to pay

• An organisation that has proven ability to 
govern itself

• An organisation with members: local people 
who have an interest in how the Trust is run 
and the services it provides

• An independent, public benefit corporation, 
run by the Board of Directors accountable to 
the Board of Governors and the community it 
serves

Minute Item 5Page 1Page 7



Some facts:Membership

• Consists of patients, carers, staff (elected) and 
partner organisations (appointed)

• All members have voting rights

• All members are eligible to stand for election to 
the Board of Governors

• Members ensure that the Trust is accountable 
to the community we serve

Some Facts: Governance

• Board of Governors elected by the 
membership chaired by the Chair of the 
Trust: is involved in the appointment of Non-
executive Directors and the Chief Executive

• Board of Directors made up of Executive and 
Non-executive Directors chaired by the Chair 
of the Trust and is accountable for the 
running of the Trust

Page 2Page 8



Governance continued:

The Trust is: 

• Free to set its strategic direction to meet the 
needs of the local population 

• Required to provide a specified services 

• Subject to Healthcare Commission standards

• Performance managed by Monitor, the 
independent regulator

We want to become a Foundation Trust because…

We are ready for the challenge, we have come a 
long way in a short space of time:

• Turnaround

• Hospital Development

• Clinical Strategy

• Core Standards

• FT Diagnostic 2006

• Changing image and momentum

Page 3Page 9



For staff becoming a Foundation Trust means…

• Being members of the Trust, not just employees

• The opportunity to be elected to the Board of 

Governors

• Playing a direct and meaningful role in influencing the 

future of the Trust

• Local pay and reward flexibility within Agenda for 

change

• Participation in job design to create roles to meet 

local needs

For patients becoming a Foundation Trust means

• The opportunity to become members of the 
Trust

• The opportunity to be elected to the Board of 
Governors

• The opportunity to play a direct and 
meaningful role in influencing the future of 
the Trust

• The opportunity to influence the quality, 
pattern and range of services for patients

Page 4Page 10



We want to become a Foundation Trust because…

• The Trust will progress to Foundation Status 
with the consent and support of its members, 
the endorsement of its stakeholders, and via 
affordable and innovative solutions.

• The goal set out in the FT Application will be 
to become a major acute hospital serving the 
local population and local patients

Summary 

• Through its membership, we will 
have a stronger understanding of 
the needs of the local community

• Foundation Trusts are the future: if 
we stand still we will be subsumed 
into another organisation

• We will have greater financial 
freedom and borrowing powers to 
invest into new services

• Healthcare contracts will be 
focussed on our local population 
needs

Page 5Page 11



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



Q&A NMUHT Application for Foundation Trust Status 

page 1 of 9 

 
Consultation process 
 

 OSC QUESTION TRUST RESPONSE 

1 Please outline the 
consultation 

process and ways 
in which you are 
trying to reach 
people 

We launched our three-month public consultation on 
becoming an NHS foundation trust on 22nd October 

2007. The consultation will close on the 13th January 
2008. 
 
We are printing 25,000 copies of a 16 page consultation 
document, which describes what an NHS foundation 
trust is, the benefits of becoming a foundation trust and 
our proposed membership and governance 
arrangements. The document includes a response form, 
with nine questions, asking people for their views. 
 
The consultation document will be translated into 

Turkish, Polish, Albanian and French, (these are the top 
four languages spoken by people who use our services). 
The translated versions of the document will be 
available on our website (which has a foundation trust 
section) for people to download. The English version of 
the consultation document has statements in all four 
languages, instructing people to contact a freephone 
helpline number or send an email if they would like to 
request a version in their language. We will also make 
the consultation document available in Braille or on 
audiotape if requested. This is stated in the document. 
 
This document will be sent by post to the home 
addresses of patients living outside of Enfield and 
Haringey. It will also be sent by post to all the 
community and voluntary sector groups in Enfield and 
Haringey, as well as GP practices and pharmacies, local 
councillors and the Primary Care Trusts. 
 
The link workers at the hospital will take the translated 
documents onto the wards and encourage patients to 
complete the response form. 
 
We will be sending a consultation campaign email to 
60,000 people, including Enfield and Haringey residents, 
patients living outside Enfield and Haringey and local 
welfare organisations. This email will take people 
directly to an online version of the consultation 
document, with the opportunity to fill out the response 
form online. It will also promote the opportunity to sign 
up to become a member of the trust using an online 
membership application form. 
 
We will be sending a consultation document to every 
member of staff and also to staff who work for 
contractors, such as Medirest, who provide the hospital’s 

Page 7

Page 13



Q&A NMUHT Application for Foundation Trust Status 

page 2 of 9 

catering facilities and MITIE, who provide the cleaning 
service. 
 
Members of the executive team will be giving 
presentations at all the key meetings that take place at 
the hospital, such as the open staff meetings, joint staff 
side committee meetings, PPI steering group and 
medical staff committees. At every meeting the 
opportunity to ask questions will be made available. 
 
We have made a 3-minute film that showcases the 
hospital and explains why we are applying for 
foundation trust status. This film is available to view on 
our website and we have recorded the voiceover in both 
English and Turkish. We will also play the film in our 
outpatient and A&E departments and have produced 
versions with both English and Turkish subtitles for this 
purpose. 
 
We are holding a number of public meetings across 
Enfield and Haringey, in venues and at times that are 
accessible to the public. Interpreters speaking Turkish, 
Polish, Albanian and French will be available at two of 
these events. With the understanding that public 
meetings are rarely well attended, we are looking at 
providing incentives to encourage people to attend. For 
example, inviting a member of Tottenham Hotspur to 
attend the event at THFC, inviting a local author to 
attend the event at Alexandra Palace, and providing free 
complementary therapy taster sessions. The meetings 
will be publicised via the local press and in the 
consultation document. 
 
We will also be attending other meetings, such as a job 
fair at Edmonton Leisure Centre on 2nd November 2007 
and the Voluntary Sector Health and Social Care Group 
Meeting at Community House on 5th December 2007, as 
well as carers groups, older adults groups, youth groups 
and ethnic minority groups meetings. 
 
We are also meeting with stakeholders and other 
partner organisations including Enfield and Haringey 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees, Enfield Primary Care 
Trust, Haringey Teaching Primary Care Trust and NHS 
London. 
 

2 How will you 
demonstrate that 
the consultation 
process has 
involved all sections 
of the local 
community? 

The consultation document response form and online 
response form both ask people for details of their age, 
gender, ethnic background and whether or not they 
have a disability. This will enable us to monitor whether 
the people who are responding to the consultation are 
representative of the communities we serve. If we 
identify sections of the community who are not 

Page 8

Page 14



Q&A NMUHT Application for Foundation Trust Status 

page 3 of 9 

engaging, we will target them in other ways (e.g. by 
asking to attend a relevant meeting). 
 
We will also be monitoring attendance at events by 
identifying the number of attendees, their ethnicity, 
their age and their gender. 
 
We will be ensuring that we attend a variety of 
community and voluntary sector group meetings, so that 
all sections of the local community have been reached. 
 
We will be sending media releases about the 
consultation and membership to the local ethnic press. 
 
We will be providing an article on our foundation trust 
application to magazines produced by community and 
voluntary groups and those produced by the councils 
and PCTs. 
 

3 How will their views 
be collated, 
analysed and acted 
upon? 

We will log all the formal and informal feedback that we 
receive, whether this is verbally at public meetings, by 
email, via the website or in hard copy. 
 
When the consultation period is over, we will analyse 
both the formal responses to the questions posed in the 
consultation document and other informal responses 
received. 
 
The responses will be categorised into those broadly in 
favour, broadly neutral and broadly opposed. This will 
include the main topics that attracted critical comment 
and those that attracted support will be identified. The 
general tenor of responses regarding the different areas 
of the foundation trust application, such as membership, 
Board of Governors, constituencies etc., will be analysed 
and recorded. 
 
The analysis of the responses will be written up and 
taken to the Foundation Trust Project Board, a formal 
sub-committee of the Trust Board. The Foundation Trust 
Project Board will then look at whether the constitution 
needs to be revised in light of the responses received 
and will prepare a response on behalf of the trust to 
address critical comments. 
 
We will respond in writing or via email to everyone who 
provides a formal response, to thank them for making 
the response and to let them know of any changes that 
have been made to the constitution as a result of the 
feedback received. 
 
The overall outcome of the consultation will be made 
available to the public via the local media. 

Page 9

Page 15



Q&A NMUHT Application for Foundation Trust Status 

page 4 of 9 

Accountability 
 

 OSC QUESTION TRUST RESPONSE 

4 How will Foundation 
Trust status address 
the democratic 

deficit and increase 
accountability to 
local people? 

Foundation Trusts are set up as Public Benefit 
Corporations and are designed to address issues of lack 
of accountability of power where the public and patients 

may disapprove of trust policy but feel disempowered 
to change it. 
 
The Board of Governors will work with the trust’s Board 
of Directors to ensure that everyone from members of 
the public, patients, carers, staff and representatives in 
the area the trust serves will have an opportunity to 
influence the range of services provided and the way 
the trust is run. 
 
Our governance proposals will bring greater democracy 

into future decision making and the trust’s public 
consultation is the first step in the process. The 
outcome will inform the foundation trust’s constitution.  

5 How will Governors 
and non-executives 
be 
elected/appointed 
and how will you 
ensure that 

membership reflects 
the diversity of the 
local community? 

Members will be able to stand for election as governors, 
and public and patient members will be eligible to be 
appointed as non-executive directors on the Board of 
Directors provided that they meet the criteria set out in 
the trust’s constitution.  
 

Members of the Board of Governors, other than the 
appointed members, will be chosen by election. The 
number of governors to be elected by each 
constituency is outlined in our consultation document 
and is subject to change pending the outcome.  
 
Elections for the Board of Governors will be conducted 
in accordance with the Model Rules for Elections. There 
will be staggered terms of office for initial 
appointments. 
 
The initial appointment to the Board of Directors will 
follow rules in the NHS Act 2006, which says that the 
chief executive is appointed as chief executive and the 
chairman and non-executives of the Trust are appointed 
to the Board of Directors. The chairman and non-
executive directors will be appointed for the remainder 
of their term on the Foundation Trust Board or 12 
months, whichever is the longer.  
 
The governors will in future appoint the chairman and 
non-executive directors, enabling local ownership and 
maintaining local accountability.  
 
Our membership strategy outlines how the trust’s 
membership will reflect the diversity of the local 
community.  

Page 10

Page 16



Q&A NMUHT Application for Foundation Trust Status 

page 5 of 9 

 
The strategy will be subject to an Equality and Diversity 
Impact Assessment, and the negative impact issues will 
be accommodated in the decisions and 
recommendations made within the strategy following 
the outcome of the public consultation. 
 
Demographic profiling is included in the strategy, in 

addition to a chapter dedicated to developing and 
building a representative body with accompanying 
targets. The Board of Governors will own the 
membership strategy and monitor progress. It is 
expected that our membership strategy will change 
over time to continue to reflect the membership 
community needs. 

6 What influence will 
local Governors and 

non-executives have 
on what, where, 
and how services 
are provided? 

Governors elected from the membership community as 
well as appointed people from partner organisations 

and key stakeholders make up the Board of Governors. 
The majority of governors are to be elected from the 
public and patient constituencies. 
 
The Board of Governors will be responsible for 
representing the interests of the local community in the 
strategic planning and stewardship of the foundation 
trust. However, the Board of Governors will not be 
responsible for the day-to-day, operational 
management of the trust that will come under the remit 
of the Board of Directors. 
 
The Board of Governors will enable local residents, staff 
and key stakeholders to influence decisions about 
spending and the development of services. 
 
The chairman, non-executive directors, chief executive 
and executive directors make up the Board of Directors.  
 
Non-executive directors, as part of the Board of 
Directors must be able to demonstrate that they have 
‘had regard’ to the views of the governors in drawing 
up their forward plans, this includes what, where, and 
how services are provided.  
 
Non-executive directors are also expected to bring 
independent judgment, they will question the 
executives so that the Board of Directors can make 
sound and well-informed judgments and act as a 
corporate team. 

 

Page 11

Page 17



Q&A NMUHT Application for Foundation Trust Status 

page 6 of 9 

Local Partners 
 

 OSC QUESTION TRUST RESPONSE 

7 How will you 
balance the needs 
of your organisation 

with the 
commissioning 
requirements of 
PCTs and Social 
Services? 

We will look to ensure, as now, that the objectives of 
the trust are consistent with those of the PCTs, Social 
Services and other key stakeholders, putting the patient 

at the heart of clinical care developments and 
recognising that there are limited resources within the 
health community. 

8 What opportunities 

will there be for new 
and existing 
partnerships to help 

you deliver more 
comprehensive 
services in 
innovative and 
flexible ways? 

We are continually looking at how to develop our 

current partnerships further. An example of how the 
trust has progressed this thinking is in the innovative 
and unique partnership with Great Ormond Street 

Hospital (GOSH) that enables our patients to benefit 
from the world-class expertise and input from GOSH 
clinicians. We will continue to assess how best we can 
provide first class services to patients, and how best we 
can do that. 

9 How will liaison with 

primary care 
improve and 
expand? 

The foundation trust will have governor representation 

from both Enfield PCT and Haringey Teaching PCT to 
strengthen links and to work collaboratively with PCTs, 
in the best interests of their local health communities. 

 
Liaison with primary care will improve and expand by 
building upon our existing work re LDP, service changes 
and future commissioning intentions and close joint 
planning with PCTs to ensure workload projections are 
robust and capacity can be flexed in advance. 
 
The foundation trust will also be required to enter into 

legally binding agreements with both PCTs.  The PCTs 
buy locally relevant services. These contracts will set 
out the number and type of services that the foundation 

trust will provide. If an NHS foundation trust wants to 
change its services, it must consult the PCTs that pay 
for those services. 
 
The Board of Governors will be assessing evidence of 
changes to our services resulting from working in 
partnership. 

10 When will the users 
see a difference? 

The pace and impact of changes depends upon the 
scale of changes being implemented. Users will start to 

see a difference in terms of improved communication 
with the commencement of the public consultation. 
However, regardless of the trust’s application to 
become an NHS foundation trust, the organisation is 
committed to improving services to our local 
community, patients and users will continue to see 
positive differences. 
 
The Board of Governors will be responsible for 

Page 12

Page 18



Q&A NMUHT Application for Foundation Trust Status 

page 7 of 9 

representing the interests of the local community in the 
strategic planning and stewardship of the foundation 
trust, this will include helping the trust prioritise 
improvements and expansions. They will also be 
responsible for communicating with other foundation 
trust members.  

  
 
Advantages of being a foundation trust   
 

 OSC QUESTION TRUST RESPONSE 

11 Please outline the 
greater financial 
freedoms you will 
have to invest in 
services and 
improve premises 
for patient care 

We will be able to support investment in services and 
improve our premises through the retention of 
surpluses and borrowing.  
 
The trust, through its governors and members, will be 
able to liaise directly with its main stakeholders to 
ensure investment is focused on supporting the health 

care needs of its resident population. A foundation 
trust’s ability to borrow is limited by detailed guidance 
from Monitor, the regulatory agency appointed by the 

Department of Health. 

12 What services have 
you identified, and 

why would 
foundation status 
allow you to develop 

these services which 
cannot be met 
within existing 

arrangements    
(Health Scrutiny has 
undertaken a 

detailed review of 
Stroke services and 
therefore it would 
be extremely helpful 
if you could provide 

an in-depth answer 
to this particular 
service) 

Achieving foundation trust status will enable the trust to 
become even more responsive to local requirements. 

This will enable us to respond faster than other trusts 
that are constrained by the bureaucratic processes of 
the centrally managed NHS. 

 
The provision of acute care (of which stroke services 
form a part), maternity and paediatric services, as well 

as specialist medical and elective services are all key to 
the ongoing strategy of the Trust which we are keen to 
develop. 

 
The Trust Board will be discussing stroke services on 6th 
November 2007 and we will be delighted to talk 
through the details with the OSC at the meeting 
scheduled for November.  

13 Your Consultation 

Question 1 asks 
what people see as 
the most important 
issues for the Trust 
to focus on? 

• Cleanliness 
• Translation/inter

pretation 

• Patient transport 
• Availability of 

services 

The issues list for the trust to focus on in our 

consultation document was arrived at by looking at 
themes raised by patients, carers and staff through 
existing feedback channels and the patient/staff survey. 
We are interested in establishing priorities from the 
point of view of public, patients and staff via the public 

consultation. 
 
We are tackling these issues as they have been 

identified but are keen to ensure that we are focussing 
appropriately on those issues and asking whether there 
are other issues that we should prioritise by the Trust 

Page 13

Page 19



Q&A NMUHT Application for Foundation Trust Status 

page 8 of 9 

• Infection control 
• Disability 

awareness 

• Waiting times 
How was this list 

arrived at and why 
cannot the Trust 
tackle these issues 
without the need to 
become a 
Foundation Trust? 

Board.  
 
 

 
 
Financial 

 

 OSC QUESTION TRUST RESPONSE 

14 The current Trust 
still has a cumulative 
deficit of  £12.9 
million that has built 
up over the last 5 
years.  How will this 
deficit be recovered?   

We have a robust plan to recover the deficit. We made 
a small surplus in 2006/2007 and are expecting to 
deliver a £3 million surplus in 2007/2008. Substantial 
strengthening of the trust management team has led 
to significant improvements across the trust. 
 
This plan has been recognised by the SHA and 
approved. 

15 The current  £111 
million PFI will be 
paid back with a 35-
year loan.  Will the 
responsibility of this 
loan fall to the new 
Foundation Trust 
and its Governors?   

The PFI agreement will be the responsibility of the 
Trust over the duration of the contract. This will not be 
altered by the move to foundation status. Our financial 
plans going forward take into account the changes in 
cost relating to the PFI. 
 
These plans were reviewed and signed off by the SHA 
and Department of Health. 

 
 
Relationship with Scrutiny Panels 
 

 OSC QUESTION TRUST RESPONSE 

16 In what ways can 

the relationship 
between the Trust 
and Scrutiny be 
further developed?  
(The Local 
Government & Public 
Involvement in 
Health Bill 2007 is 

expected to come 
into force by April 
2008 and will extend 

the role of Scrutiny 
with Foundation 
Trusts) 

The Local Government & Public Involvement in Health 

Bill 2007 sets out plans to abolish PPI Forums and the 
CPPIH, they will be replaced by Local Involvement 
Networks (LINks). We understand that the Bill includes 
significant duties for the Local Authorities, including 
ones relating to community strategies, Local Strategic 
Partnerships, Local Area Agreements and duties of 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees.  
 

We welcome the opportunity to work closely with the 
OSC and LINks to explore opportunities for developing 
relationships further. 

17 How will you ensure We are clear that we are operating within a framework 

Page 14

Page 20



Q&A NMUHT Application for Foundation Trust Status 

page 9 of 9 

that Scrutiny is 
informed of any 
potential substantial 
variations? 

that has scrutiny as an integral part of any change 
process. We would expect the panels to be involved in 
any relevant variation as early as possible. 

 
 
Relationship with LINks 
 

 OSC QUESTION TRUST RESPONSE 

18 The Local 

Involvement 
Networks are to be 
established in April 
2008. The purpose 
of LINks is to 
provide a stronger 
voice for people in 
the planning, design, 

commissioning and 
provision of health 
and social services.  

How will the 
Foundation Trust 
work with them? 

The Department of Health is currently consulting on 

the regulations that will accompany the new LINks. 
The legislation updates and strengthens the duty on 
NHS bodies, of which the North Middlesex University 
Hospital as a foundation trust would be be part, to 
involve and consult local communities about changes 
to services. LINks will make reports and 
recommendations, and refer issues to local councillors. 
It will provide a one-stop-shop for the community to 

engage with care professionals and vice versa. 
 
The trust is following these developments closely; it 

currently works closely and constructively with the PPI 
Forum and PRF and expects to continue to be able to 
do so with LINks when established. 

 
The trust recently appointed a full-time PPI Officer who 
will work closely with the Foundation Trust Project 
Board and Board of Governors, once established, to 
ensure that LINks is integrated into our planning, 
design and health service provision. 
 

 
5 November 2007 

Page 15

Page 21



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



North Middlesex University Hospital - Governance Arrangements 

High Level Governance Structure

Members elected to become Governors then elect Chairman and non-executive directors

Chief Exexcutive appoints executive directors

Operational Hospital Management Board Non-executive Assurance Committees

Board of Directors

Board of Governors

Performance Management template

Workforce 

– Appraisals

– Sickness/absence

– AfC 

Clinical 

– H.I.C.

– S4BH

– Mort./Morbidity

Financial

– Expenditure

– Capital

– Turnaround

Operational

– Referrals

– Activity & income

– Waiting lists

– 18 week performance

Patient Safety & Quality (2)

Audit & Assurance Committee Finance Committee

Clinical Risk Clinical Audit S4BH

PPI Maternity Board

Patient Experience Research & Development

Drugs & Therapeutics

Pharmacy Infection Local Safe Children

Patient Safety & Quality Committee Workforce Committee Remuneration Committee

Trust Board

Page 17Page 23



Finance (3)

Audit & Assurance Committee

Turnaround Contracts Cash & Capital Supplies Data Quality & Costings

Finance Committee Patient Safety & Quality Committee Workforce Committee Remuneration Committee

Trust Board

Workforce (4)

Audit & Assurance Committee Finance Committee Patient Safety & Quality Committee

Learning Board Joint Staff Committee ESR Project Board Stress Management Group AfC

Workforce Committee Remuneration Committee

Trust Board

Audit & Assurance (5)

Assurance Framework Information Governance Health & Safety Due Diligence

Audit & Assurance Committee Finance Committee Patient Safety & Quality Committee Workforce Committee Remuneration Committee

Trust Board

Page 18Page 24



Response to Panel request to state the relationship between the NMUH 
and the Darzi review of NHS services in London (from Claire Panniker 
(Chief Executive, NMUH).  

26/11/07 

Dear Martin

Thank you for your invitation to the overview & scrutiny committee last 
Monday, both Joe and I found it very helpful to hear directly the questions and 
concerns that you raised, and trust that we were able to reassure you of our 
intentions to use the foundation trust process to really focus on our local 
population and patients.

With regard to your specific question concerning the current London-wide 
review that is being consulted on as part of the work commissioned through 
Professor Lord Darzi, I can assure you that this work will inform how North 
Middlesex University Hospital develops its services, along with the current 
consultation regarding Barnet, Enfield and Haringey. 

It is really important that we develop our services in conjunction with what is 
happening in the wider health economy to ensure that we deliver the best 
services that we can to our local patients.

Best wishes

Clare

_____________________________________________________________________

_

This email has been scanned by the MessageLabs Email Security System.

For more information please visit http://www.messagelabs.com/email  

_____________________________________________________________________

_

Page 19Page 25



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26



Where we are

Chase Farm 

site

St Ann’s site

Edgware 

Community

Hospital

Colindale

site

Hertfordshire

London Boroughs of 

Camden & Islington

Barnet 

Hospital

Minute Item 6Page 21Page 27



Who we serve

§ 800,000 population

§ Just under 1/3 people come from an ethnic 
minority background

§ Varied levels of deprivation

§ 40,000 refugees/asylum seekers

§ 5,000 people with psychotic disorder

§ 150,000 with neurotic disorders

§ 3 in 10 of our users have dual diagnosis of 
substance misuse 

Our Services

§ 12,000 people treated each year

§ All ages

§ Large number of community teams and bases

§ 711 inpatient beds

§ Specialist services

§ 2,700 staff

§ £182m annual budget

Page 22Page 28



Partnerships

NHS London

Voluntary sector

Users/CarersOther Trusts

Criminal Justice 
System

Barnet Council

Enfield  Council

Haringey  Council

Barnet PCT

Enfield  PCT

Haringey  PCT

Mental Health Trust

Academic 
Partners

Mental Health Trust

Our Vision

§ To lead and influence the development of 
person centred networks to deliver effective, 
high quality services

§ To be the first choice for staff, patients and 
commissioners by building a reputation for 
excellence

§ To develop innovative partnerships to better 
serve the needs of our population

Page 23Page 29



Recent highlights

§ Our Healthcare Commission ratings for 2006/07 

have improved significantly from last year, we 

have now achieved ‘Good’ for Quality of Services 

and ‘Fair’ for Use of Resources

§ We have had formal authorisation from the Dept 

of Health and SHA to proceed with our 

Foundation Trust application

§ Ongoing improvements in our services for users 

and carers

What is a Foundation Trust?

§ New “public benefit” corporation

§ Part of the NHS but greater freedom

§ Accountable to local people

§ Opportunity for greater involvement 
and influence by the community it 
serves

Page 24Page 30



Why do we want to become a FT?

§ Give users, carers, staff and local 
communities more say

§ Feedback will help us provide more 
responsive appropriate services

§ Greater stability of funding

§ New partnerships and ventures within a 
range of community services

§ Greater financial freedom to borrow or 
invest surplus to improve premises or 
services

Latest FT timetable

§ 17 Oct 2007 –consultation begins 
§ 16 Jan 2008 – consultation ends 
§ (your last chance to respond!)

§ Mar 2008 – Secretary of State 
decision

§ Apr – Jul 2008 Monitor assessment
§ Autumn 2008 FT status confirmed

Page 25Page 31



Proposed Service Developments

Trust is proposing five major service 
developments over the next few years:

§ Implementation of early intervention across 
the Trust

§ Increasing access to psychological therapies

§ New inpatient forensic unit at Chase Farm 
Hospital

§ New inpatient substance misuse 
detoxification unit at Edgware Hospital

§ Redevelopment of St Ann’s Hospital in 
Haringey

We would like to hear your views

§ Does our vision sound about right to you?

§ Do our service priorities sound about right to 
you?

§ How should we define the area we draw public 
members from in our constitution?

§ Do you agree that the minimum age limit for 
public Members should be 12?

§ Should we have a separate public category for 
service users?

§ Do you have any comments on the role we see 
for Members?

Page 26Page 32



We would like to hear your views (cont)

§ Do you have any comments on the number of 

Governors and the composition of the Council 
of Members?

§ Do you have any comments on the role we see 
for the Council?

§ Do you agree with our plans to adopt a new 
name for the Trust (probably North London 
NHS Foundation Trust)?

Thank you for coming

Please fill in the Membership form in 
your pack to join us 

For more information please see our 
website (www.beh-mht.nhs.uk) or 

contact us on 020 8375 1692 or e-mail 
membership@beh-mht .nhs.uk

Page 27Page 33



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 34



1

TRUST APPLICATION FOR FOUNDATION TRUST STATUS 
BRIEFING FOR HARINGEY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 

19 NOVEMBER 2007 

INTRODUCTION 
This briefing is intended to provide further information to the OSC on the 
Trust’s application to become an NHS Foundation Trust (FT). It complements 
the general presentation that will be given at the meeting and has been 
previously circulated to Members on why the Trust wishes to become an FT 
and the benefits to users, carers and local people. 

This briefing focuses on the specific questions raised by the OSC and outlines 
a brief response to each, to be discussed further at the meeting. 

PROCESS:  

• Has the consultation process to seek Foundation status been 
adequate? 

The consultation process began on 17 October 2007 and will run to 16 
January 2008. The aim is to present the Trust’s proposals for becoming a 
Foundation Trust and its key priorities for the medium term. The 
consultation is seeking views from a wide range of stakeholders, both on 
the proposal to become a Foundation Trust and also on a number of 
specific issues. The Trust has produced a formal Consultation Document 
which has been distributed to key stakeholders and also a Summary 
Consultation Document, which has been very widely distributed. In 
addition, it is planned that the Summary Consultation Document will be 
produced as an insert in local newspapers shortly. Information has been 
sent to local libraries, GP surgeries, higher education establishments and 
other community locations to ensure wide engagement. We are also 
engaging with our users and their carers and our staff, all of whom have 
received copies of the Summary Consultation Document. 

During the consultation period there are a number of meetings arranged, 
which have been widely publicised. There are two major public open 
meetings in each borough, which have been advertised in the local press 
and other forums. The major public meetings in Haringey were 7 
November (7.00 pm) at the Civic Centre and 18 December (2.00 pm) at 
the Tottenham Green Leisure Centre. We are also attending the Haringey 
Well-Being Partnership Board on 13 December. In addition, we have 
arranged a large number of local meetings with community groups, 
voluntary organisations and others to present our plans. These include 
groups like the Haringey User Network, the Polish & Eastern European 
Christian Family Centre in Wood Green and the Haringey Mental Health 
Carers Association. 

Page 29Page 35



2

As well as seeking views on our plans, we are also inviting people to 
express an interest in becoming a Member of the Foundation Trust and 
are asking for views on a number of membership issues. These include 
questions such as the minimum age, whether we should have Members 
from outside the three Boroughs and also on our proposed Members 
Council.  

We are seeking around 2000 Members by early January 2008 and we are 
actively seeking support from our key partners, such as the Local 
Authorities, in helping us to achieve this. We would welcome advice on 
reaching local people and also, potentially, through inviting your staff to 
become Members, to help us promote mental well being, as well as mental 
healthcare. 

• Has the consultation process involved all sections of the local 
community?  
We are actively seeking to reach out to all sections of the local community, 
through the local press, libraries, GP surgeries and other means. The 
meetings we are arranging include a number for specific community 
groups. We also plan to produce summary information in local languages 
addressing issues of specific interest to specific communities and make 
this available in local community venues. 

• Has the process been open and clear? Have all views – negative as 
well as positive – been reflected in the application for Foundation 
status?  
The consultation process still is underway and we believe that it is open 
and clear. The whole point of our consultation is to engage people in 
discussing our future and we want to hear all views. We will reflect all 
views in our formal FT application. 

• Will the Trust act on and address any concerns raised in the 
consultation process?  
All views and comments expressed during the consultation will be 
recorded on a database and thoroughly analysed. The Trust will produce a 
formal report summarising the results of the consultation and our 
responses to the key points. This will form a key part of FT application 
document. 

ACCOUNTABILITY:  

• To what extent will Foundation status increase democratic 
accountability and community ownership of health services?  
Increasing accountability to local people, users and staff is one of the key 
objectives of becoming a Foundation Trust. We are seeking to recruit a 
significant membership made up of local people, service users, carers and 
staff and, as outlined earlier, we are inviting as many local people as 
possible to join us as Members.  

The Members of a Foundation Trust are central to the way that it works.  
They are an important route through which the Trust will engage more 

Page 30Page 36



3

effectively with its local communities, inform the Trust about local mental 
health care needs and enable the Trust to reach out more effectively.  

We see the key benefits of Membership as being: 

• It will provide a useful reference point for our plans, ensuring that we 
consider a wide range of options and make wise choices 

• It will be developmental for those involved 

• It will facilitate and support existing and new partnerships and better 
linkages within the community 

• It will support our efforts to become a culturally competent organisation 
and help us reach out to all the communities we serve 

• Will local people have more say in local health services?  
As a Foundation Trust, our organisation will be accountable to its 
Members.  We already consult with service users, carers and staff, but 
through our Membership they can be formally involved in setting the 
direction of the Trust, agreeing priorities and checking on progress.  In this 
way, we will ensure that our services are sensitive to local needs, practical 
and user-focused. 

Our Membership will provide us with new channels to engage and work 
with partners and other local agencies.  We hope that our Members will be 
active in other areas of community life as well, and can therefore help us 
to link in to the local community even more effectively, and open up new 
opportunities for our services and service users. 

• How can the Trust ensure that the membership and management 
board reflect the diversity of the local community?  
Membership will be actively encouraged from all sections of the 
communities we serve. The Trust has analysed the demographic and 
social profiles of the three Boroughs and will seek to ensure that the 
Membership is reflective by targeting hard to reach groups and specific 
local communities as outlined above. Because the Trust is seeking to 
develop a diverse and representative Members Council, we are positively 
seeking people who are less likely to have been active within formal 
structures previously.    

We see it as particularly important that we develop services which are 
responsive to the different needs of the different communities we serve. 
We therefore see a key role for our Membership in being to ensure that all 
perspectives are involved in the life of the Trust, and that we continue to 
develop a culturally competent organisation in the future. 

• Will the Membership and Board of Governors have any influence on 
services? 
Members will receive regular information about what is happening in the 
Trust and will have a regular opportunity to feed in their views, giving them 
a direct influence on how the Trust moves forward. We want our Members 
to become as involved as possible in the life of the Trust, and aim to offer 
lots of different ways that individuals can take part.  

Page 31Page 37



4

We see the primary roles of our Members as being: 

• To provide views on our priorities and plans, through consultation 

• To elect the majority of Governors on the Members Council 

• To work with us to promote positive mental health, and help to 
overcome the stigma and discrimination sometimes faced by our 
service users 

• To help us to engage with the communities we serve 

• To become more involved in other ways, such as helping us to fund-
raise or working as volunteers. 

In addition, we believe that our Membership will bring real opportunities to 
raise awareness about mental health issues in the communities we serve, 
and we are keen to ensure that our Membership is diverse and 
representative. We therefore expect that our Members will: 

• Take an active part in the life of the Trust 

• Help us to develop our thinking about service needs 

• Help us to engage more effectively with local communities. 

Our Members Council (as we propose to call our Board of Governors) will 
be directly involved in helping to shape the future direction of the Trust and 
will work closely with the Trust Board, advising them directly on the views 
of local people, users, carers and staff. The Members Council will not run 
the organisation; this remains the responsibility of the Trust Board, but will 
have a key role in scrutinising plans and agreeing key decisions.  

PARTNERSHIPS AND THE LOCAL HEALTH ECONOMY:  

• Will the creation of the Trust lead to a two-tier local health economy?  
As an FT, the Trust will remain part of the local NHS and will play its full 
part in the local health economy delivering care to those who need it. It is 
national policy that all NHS provision will be provided by FTs by the end of 
2008/09 and therefore we are preparing our application alongside other 
NHS partners, including the North Middlesex Hospital, the Whittington 
Hospital and Camden and Islington Mental Health Trust. Many other NHS 
organisations locally have already become FTs and the others will be 
preparing their applications soon. 

• Will the Trust have a competitive advantage over other NHS Trusts?  
As an FT, the Trust will enjoy certain flexibities and freedoms not enjoyed 
by NHS Trusts. These are designed to allow FTs to have more local 
control over how they use future financial surpluses or proceeds from the 
sae of surplus assets, to improve services for users and carers. The Trust 
anticipates that by the time we become an FT in autumn 2008, most local 
NHS organisations will also be FTs or be close to becoming one. 

• What are the risks and benefits to partnership working and the 
stability of the local health economy?  
As at present, the Trust will work closely with our commissioners (PCTs 
and local authorities) to fully understand their commissioning intentions 

Page 32Page 38



5

and plan on a joint basis. The three local PCTs and three Local Authorities 
will each have a nominated Governor who will sit on the Trust’s Council of 
Members.  

The ability to develop stronger partnerships with a wide range of key 
stakeholders is one of the major benefits of becoming an FT. As well as 
the local PCTs and local Authorities, we will also have nominated 
Governors from other partners including University College London, 
Middlesex University, the Metropolitan Police, North London Learning and 
Skills Council and Business Link.  

We see the strengthening of partnership working with these key 
organisations as critical to the Trust’s future, as we seek to raise 
awareness of mental health issues and promote mental well being, as well 
as improving services for those with mental health problems and their 
carers. Becoming an FT will also give us greater opportunities to form new 
partnerships with a range of voluntary and independent providers of 
mental health services, to help us expand the range of services we provide 
and better meet the needs of service users and carers. 

• Is the “duty to cooperate” effective?  
As outlined above, the Trust already works in close partnership with many 
different partners and becoming an FT will facilitate the development of 
stronger partnerships and new and innovative partnerships, for the benefit 
of our users and their carers. As a Mental Health FT, the Trust will not only 
have a duty to cooperate, but partnership and cooperation will be even 
more critical to the delivery of high quality services and therefore we will 
be seeking to develop these relationships at every level across the three 
boroughs. 

• What will be the impact on the local health economy?  
The local health economy will benefit positively from having a strong, well 
managed organisation which provides high quality mental health services 
in a cost effective way. The Trust will continue to work closely with local 
acute hospitals and colleagues in primary and community care, to ensure 
the overall improvement of the mental health and well being of local 
people. 

• How can it be ensured that the Trust continues to be fully committed 
to local health improvement partnerships?  
As already outlined, the Trust is totally committed to partnership working 
and to developing new partnerships where appropriate, to improve our 
services. The Trust sees itself as making an important contribution to the 
local health and social care economy and is committed to continuing to 
work to strengthen the local health improvement partnerships, because 
these are so important to the delivery of excellent services for our users. 

Page 33Page 39



6

IMPACT ON LOCAL PEOPLE:  

• How will local people benefit?  
We see significant benefits for local people in becoming an FT. We will 
continue to serve our local communities, providing high quality, cost 
effective, services that meet local needs in partnership with other 
organisations, in the NHS, in local authorities and in the voluntary and 
independent sectors. The Trust is committed to promoting good mental 
health and well being in its broadest sense, as well as helping people 
recover from mental ill health. An increasing part of our work is about 
promoting mental well being as well as helping those with mental ill health 
to recover. We believe that becoming an FT, with a wide Membership and 
direct involvement of key partners such as the local police, Chambers of 
Commerce, local Business Links and universities through our Members 
Council, will help us to improve the mental health and well being of local 
people. 

• Will there be any negative impacts for local people?  
We see the impact of becoming an FT as wholly positive, we do not 
believe there will be any negative impacts. 

• What impact will Foundation status have on local health inequalities 
in health – especially unequal access to health services?  
The Trust is committed to ensuring equal access to its services and, as an 
FT, will continue to strive to address current health inequalities. Through 
our Membership and Members Council, we will engage with a much wider 
cross section of the local population and will actively seek views on how 
our services can be made more accessible to all those who need them. 
The Membership and Members Council will hold the Trust to account for 
this and this will therefore provide a powerful lever for improvements 
where they are necessary. 

• Will Foundation status improve health services for local people? 
The Trust is continuing to improve its services all the time. The recent 
rating for the quality of our clinical services from the Healthcare 
Commission improved significantly from ‘Fair’ last year, to ‘Good’ this year. 
In addition, the results of the recent national survey of users experiences 
showed a significant improvement in users experiences of our services. 
However, the Trust is committed to continuing to improve all our services 
and we are seeking to achieve an ‘Excellent’ rating for clinical quality from 
the Healthcare Commission next year.  

Becoming an FT will give users, carers, our commissioners and our staff a 
more direct voice in how we develop our services, in setting priorities for 
the future and in those areas that need attention to better meet users and 
carers needs. This will be an ongoing process, and we expect our 
Membership and, in particular, our Members Council, to hold us to account 
for seeing a planned programme of further improvements in response to 
the issues they work with us to highlight. 

Page 34Page 40



Chairman:  Carl Lammy 
   Acting Chief Executive: Maria Kane

15th November 2007      

Dear Mr Helman 

Questions arising from the Foundation Trust Consultation Document

Thank you for your questions arising from the Patient and Public Involvement Forum meeting on 
31 October and the earlier questions raised by Lynne Lambert. As you know, we are now in the 
formal consultation period and are very keen to hear from all our stakeholders, particularly users 
and carers, and therefore I am very pleased to receive comments from the PPIF. I will respond to 
each of the points you raised in order below: 

1.  The Trust is committed to promoting good mental health and well being in its broadest sense, 
as well as helping people recover from mental ill health. One of our core values is that “we believe 
in a positive, socially inclusive approach to mental health, that includes physical well being. We will 
work with individuals and communities to prevent/reduce mental ill health and promote as speedy 
a recovery as possible”. An increasing part of our work is about promoting mental well being as 
well as helping those with mental ill health to recover. One recent example was during World 
Mental Health Day on 10 October when we had teams of staff out in the community promoting 
mental well being and giving out information to the general public.  The Trust also runs a range of 
workshops, normally open to everyone, on issues like managing stress and anxiety at work and at 
home, which are aimed at helping local people keep mentally healthy. We are also involved in 
some specific outreach activities, for example, the Barnet Schools Project, where teams of our 
staff visit local schools and talk with pupils about promoting mental well being and reducing the 
stigma often associated with mental health.  

In the future, we want to use our Membership and Members Council to help us promote mental 
well being more widely and to help service users on the road to recovery. We plan to attract 
organisations such as the local police, Chambers of Commerce, local Business Links and 
universities to become part of our Members Council because of the help they can offer in terms of 
jobs, training and housing for our service users and wider community involvement in promoting 
mental health and well being more widely.  Mental health services have sometimes been viewed 
as low priority, however with the help of involved Members and Governors, we hope to make a 
real difference. 

2.  The Trust values the existing positive relationship with the PPIF and looks forward to 
establishing a constructive relationship with the new LINKs structure. At present, the detail of how 
the new LINKs arrangements will work is not yet clear; we are awaiting national guidance on this 
from the Department of Health. However, it is clear that all NHS Foundation Trusts will have close 
relationships with their LINKs and we will work with the new structure once established to continue 
the excellent work undertaken by the PPIF at present. The Foundation Trust governance structure

Mr Tony Helman 
BEH MHT Patient and Public Involvement Forum 

By e-mail only

Trust Headquarters 
Barnet, Enfield and Haringey Mental Health Trust 

St Ann’s Hospital
St Ann’s Road

London N15 3TH 

Tel: 020 8442 5851  
Email: maria.kane@beh-mht.nhs.uk 

Page 35Page 41



is based upon the principle of increased accountability to service users, carers, staff, local people 
and other stakeholders and all our users and anyone living in Barnet, Enfield or Haringey can 
become a Member and put themselves forward for election as a Governor. The new LINKs 
structure is intended to be independent of individual organisations and therefore we would not 
expect that LINKs Members would seek to become Members or Governors of any local NHS 
Foundation Trust. We anticipate that this point will be clarified further in forthcoming national 
guidance. We see the key role of our Members as being to help inform us of the views of all local 
stakeholders, so that we can ensure our services fully meet their needs We see the role of our 
Members Council as being very complementary to that of the new LINKs, with the Members 
Council informing the Board on the views of the Membership and holding the Trust Board to 
account for how the Trust is run and decisions on major priorities. We envisage the LINKs, along 
with the Overview and Scrutiny Committees, continuing to scrutinise the Trust and hold us 
accountable to local people, particularly around proposals for major service changes. 

3. Foundation Trusts are accountable to the local communities they serve through their 
Membership and Members Council. They are not accountable to Commissioners, however, they 
are expected to work in partnership with their Commissioners to agree local priorities for services 
and ensure the most effective use of NHS resources locally to best meet the needs of local 
people.  We will continue to work closely with our local PCTs and they will each have a seat on our 
Members Council. We see this as extremely positive, it will give our Commissioners more direct 
involvement in key decision making and will give them more direct contact with our service users 
and carers, who will also be represented on the Members Council. In the future, we plan to use our 
Membership much more actively to help inform the Trust and our Commissioners, both PCTs and 
Practice Based Commissioners, of the views of service users and carers. We also plan to 
establish a number of Members Focus Groups around particular services or issues and these will 
help the Trust to influence all our Commissioners more effectively on key decisions on the use of 
resources and service development priorities. 

4.  One of the key objectives of becoming a Foundation Trust is to give service users, carers and 
staff a greater say in how the organisation is run and its key decisions. As Members, they will be 
able to feed their views directly to the Trust and all Members will be able to stand for election as 
Governors if they wish.  The Governors, through the Members Council, will have a significant 
influence in the key decisions of the Trust and in helping set our priorities for the future. The 
Members Council will not deal with the day-to-day running of the Trust, this will remain the 
responsibility of the Trust Board, however it will have some very important responsibilities, 
including: 

• Representing the interests of the local community 

• Feeding back information about the Trust to their local community / constituencies 

• Appointing or removing the Trust Chairman and Non Executive Directors 

• Appointing or removing the Trust’s auditor 

• Approving the appointment of the Chief Executive 

• Attending relevant Board Committees 

• Leading the development of the Trust’s Membership, in order to ensure Members can 
contribute effectively  

• Holding the Trust Board to account in relation to its compliance with its formal Authorisation 
by Monitor 

The Trust Board will remain legally responsible for ensuring the Trust exercises its functions 
effectively, efficiently and economically. The Trust Board’s specific responsibilities include: 

• Day to day management of the Trust 

• Ensuring compliance with the Terms of Authorisation, Constitution, statutory and 
contractual obligations 

Page 36Page 42



• Scrutinising the performance of Executive Directors 

• Appointing or removing the Chief Executive and Executive Directors 

• Deciding the remuneration of the Chief Executive and Executive Directors 

• Agreeing the Trust’s forward plans and Annual Report

5.  Our proposal to change the name of the Trust reflects the fact that as a Foundation Trust we 
will be a new type of organisation, creating new opportunities with greater local accountability, 
financial freedoms and flexibilities. Our proposed new name is “The North London NHS 
Foundation Trust” and we feel this better reflects the geographical area we serve. We provide 
services not just to residents of Barnet, Enfield and Haringey. For example, we provide forensic 
services to Camden and Islington residents and Eating Disorder Services to people living in Essex 
and Hertfordshire.  We feel this new name would better reflect our provider arrangements, both 
current and future.  Dropping “mental health” from the title is in line with other mental health trusts 
in London and around the country and reflects the fact that we see our role as promoting mental 
well being as well as caring for those with mental illness and we want to help reduce the stigma 
sometimes associated with mental health services. 

6.  The operational freedoms that the Trust will enjoy as a Foundation Trust are determined in the 
Foundation Trust model set out by the Department of Health.  Foundation Trusts are able to sell 
assets that are surplus to requirements and keep the receipts for use in improving local services, 
which is not always the case for NHS Trusts. Foundation Trusts are also able to retain surpluses 
made over the financial year to spend on improving local services, as determined locally, rather 
than set at national or Strategic Health Authority level.  Members, through the Members Council, 
will have a say in how surpluses are spent. Foundation Trusts are also fundamentally different to 
NHS Trusts in how they are performance managed. They are free from direct performance 
management by the Secretary of State for Health through Strategic Health Authorities, they are 
self governing entities, enabled to determine their own future, working closely with local partners, 
including commissioners.  There are already a number of examples in London and elsewhere 
where NHS organisations have been able to improve services for users, patients and carers better 
and more quickly than was possible previously, because they have been able to make locally 
based decisions which reflect the needs of local people. For example, Oxleas and South Essex 
Trusts are both now Foundation Trusts and both report that, through the local knowledge and 
contacts of their Membership and Governors, they are able to promote mental health and help the 
recovery of service users back into their communities much more effectively. 

7.  The Trust is committed to being the first choice provider of mental health services for service 
users and commissioners.  Commissioners are increasingly looking at broadening the range of 
providers of mental health services to ensure that users have greater choice and to ensue access 
to high quality services is available for all service users.  This will create greater competition in the 
future and we therefore need to ensure that our services are responsive to the needs of users and 
carers.  The Trust wishes to provide as much choice as possible in the way we provide services, 
so that we remain first choice for users and commissioners. Already, users have choice around 
many aspects of the way they are cared for and who is caring for them and we want to continue to 
develop this, to extend the range of choices available for users. 

8.  Members of the Foundation Trust will have a direct route into the Trust and be able to directly 
influence the way services are shaped, through personal feedback and, particularly, through the 
Members Council.  Members will receive regular updates and information on the work of the Trust 
and will be invited to feedback their views on important issues such as the Trust’s future priorities. 
Non-members will still be able to give their views, but will not have the direct influence that 
Members and Governors will have.  

9.  As outlined above, the Membership of the Foundation Trust will be a powerful body in that it will 
be able to influence the way it is run and key decisions about the future.  The Membership, 

Page 37Page 43



through the Members Council, will have power to ensure that the Foundation Trust makes 
decisions that are in the best interests of local people and their mental health and that the Trust 
properly implements agreed plans. We want to engage our Members in helping us to develop 
policy around particular issues / areas and to use the combined views of our Membership to help 
us influence Commissioners plans and priorities. 

10.  It is not envisaged that there will be significant conflicts between the Members Council and the 
Trust Board as they will work very closely together to improve the services we offer to our users 
and their carers. The Trust Chairman will Chair both the Trust Board and the Members Council 
and will therefore have a crucial role in ensuring the two bodies understand each other’s roles and 
responsibilities and support each other in fulfilling these, for the benefit of our users. It is possible, 
however, that conflicts may occasionally occur and it would be the responsibility of the Chairman 
to seek to resolve these locally. All Foundation Trusts have to develop a constitution in accordance 
with Schedule 7 of the 2006 Health and Social Care Act. In line with other Foundation Trusts, we 
will have a section in the constitution on Dispute Resolution Procedures.  Any disputes between 
the Members Council and the Trust Board will be resolved in accordance with the Dispute 
Resolution Procedure as set out in the constitution. 

11a.  The number of Governors to represent Members not resident in Barnet, Enfield or Haringey 
is something that we are consulting on and we would welcome the PPIF’s views on this. A 
significant proportion of the Trust’s work comes from outside Barnet, Enfield and Haringey. This 
equates to 19% of our total patient income and 14% of our activity, although this is concentrated 
mainly in our specialist services such as forensics, eating disorders and brain injury rehabilitation. 
Our proposed number of Public Governors representing Members not resident in Barnet, Enfield 
or Haringey seeks to broadly reflect the geographical split of our users and ensure appropriate 
representation of those who use our more specialist services.  

11b.  We have not get finalised our plans on how the three voluntary organisation Governors will 
be appointed. We are committed to ensuring that there is both geographical and interest group 
diversity among the three voluntary organisation representatives and it is likely that we will 
facilitate elections among those voluntary organisations that express an interest where this is 
necessary.  

12.  The five service development proposals outlined in the consultation document are the result of 
considerable work both within the Trust and with local stakeholders to clarify the major strategic 
priorities for the Trust over the next few years. These were proposed following input from users, 
carers, staff and our commissioners. They are not exhaustive, many other developments in our 
services are planned over the new few years, however, these represent the major strategic 
priorities that the Trust wants to pursue initially as a Foundation Trust. We feel that these do reflect 
the organisation’s priorities. We have recently produced a short summary of our Vision for the 
Future as a Foundation Trust and I attach a copy. We would welcome any comments on this. In 
future, as a Foundation Trust, we will be consulting with our Members and formally involving the 
Members Council in such key decisions and we believe that this will help us to ensure we focus on 
the issues that users and carers see as priorities. 

13.  Our constitution will provide a section on Indemnity of Governors.  Members of the Members 
Council who act honestly and in good faith will not have to meet out of their personal resources 
any personal civil liability which is incurred in the execution or purported execution of their 
Members functions, except where they have acted recklessly.  Any costs arising in this way will be 
met by the Trust. 

Thank you again for your positive engagement and I hope that my letter has been helpful in giving 
you more information on the benefits and opportunities of becoming a Foundation Trust. I look 
forward to continuing to work closely with the PPIF over the coming months as we seek to 
improve the well-being and mental health of the people we serve. 

Page 38Page 44



Chairman:  Carl Lammy 
   Acting Chief Executive: Maria Kane

Page 39Page 45



With best wishes 

Yours sincerely 

Maria Kane 
Acting Chief Executive 

cc  Lynn Lambert 
Ulla Chisolm 
David Hindle 

Page 40Page 46



                                                              Chairman:  Richard Sumray 
                                                                                                                            Chief Executive: Tracey Baldwin  

                                                                                 
 

B1 Trust Headquarters 

St Ann’s Hospital 
St Ann’s Road 

London 
N15 3TH 

28th November, 2007 
Direct Line: 020 8442 6300 

PA: 020 8442 6189 
Direct Fax: 020 8442 6567 

Email: tracey.baldwin@haringey.nhs.uk 
PA: carleen.baugh@haringey.nhs.uk 

 
 

Carl Lammy 
Chairman 
BEHMHT 
B2, Trust Headquarters 
St Ann’s Hospital Site 
St Ann’s Road 
London N15 3TH 
 
 
 
Dear Carl 
 
Thank you for your letter of 16th November in response to my letter raising 
concerns about current management and leadership capacity within the Trust. 
 
You may be aware that last week Barnet, Enfield and Haringey PCTs convened a 
meeting with representatives from Barnet Enfield and Haringey Councils to 
discuss mental health services.  This meeting was attended by senior 
representatives of all six organisations.  One of the key purposes of this meeting 
was to discuss your organisation’s FT application and the extent to which we felt 
ready to support your application at this stage. 
 
There was a very high degree of consensus from those present in favour of not 
supporting your organisation’s FT application at the current time.  I have set out 
the reasons for our decision below.   
 
• Continued concern regarding clinical risk within the Trust and the need for 

this to be the primary focus of the organisation in the short term. 
 
• Continued concern about the lack of stable senior management and 

leadership capacity with the Trust. 
 
• Lack of robust activity cost information which undermines our ability to 

commission services from you effectively and does not enable us to feel  
 

Agenda Item 5Page 47



                                                              Chairman:  Richard Sumray 
                                                                                                                            Chief Executive: Tracey Baldwin  

-  2  - 
 

confident in signing up to projected activity and commissioning forecasts as 
required through the FT process at this time.  

 
• Concern re the ability of the Trust to deliver against PCT MH key performance 

indicators. 
 
We would expect to keep this under regular review and have agreed to meet 
again in April to formally review the position at that time, taking in to account 
progress against the issues outlined above, as well as the extent to which we 
feel the Trust appropriately engaged with the 08/09 SLA negotiations. 
 
We appreciate that this decision will be a disappointment to yourself and your 
team and recognise the very great deal of hard work that has gone in to 
developing your FT application to date.  
 
NHS London are aware of our concerns. We recognise that there will need to be 
further discussion between yourselves, ourselves and NHS London about the 
implications of our decision and the timing of your FT application. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Yours sincerely  
 
 

 
 
Tracey Baldwin 

Corporate Chief Executive 

 
Cc Chas Hollwey   Barnet PCT 

Helen Brown   Haringey TPCT 
Gerry Taylor   Haringey TPCT 
Damien Reid   NHS London 
Ray James   Enfield Council 
Mun Thong Phung  Haringey Council 
Jill Stansfield   Barnet Council 
Maria Kane   BEH Mental Health Trust 

 
 
 
 

Page 48


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING
	5 TO RECEIVE EVIDENCE FROM HARINGEY TPCT

